

BURSA ULUDAĞ UNIVERSITY 2025-2026 ACADEMIC YEAR STUDENTS FROM ABROAD OR FOREIGN STUDENT PREFERENCE AND PLACEMENT GUIDE

CONTENTS

1. INTERNATIONAL STUDENT ACCEPTANCE CALENDAR	2
2. APPLICATION CONDITIONS	3
3. GUIDELINES, FUNDAMENTAL PRINCIPLES AND RULES	4
4. PREFERENCE APPLICATIONS AND EVALUATION OF	
APPLICATIONS	5
5. REGISTRATION PROCEDURES	5
6. FINAL PROVISIONS	7
ANNEXES	
ANNEX-1 EXAMINATIONS AND CONDITIONS FOR FOREIGN STUDENT ACCEPTANCES	9
ANNEX-2 THE REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FROM CANDIDATES ENTITLED TO DEFINITIVE	
REGISTRATION FOR FOREIGN STUDENT ADMISSION QUOTAS	10
ANNEX-3 LETTER OF COMMITMENT	.11
ANNEX-4 FINANCIAL STATUS DECLARATION	12
ANNEX-5 BUÜ CLARIFICATION TEXT REGARDING PROTECTION AND PROCESSING OF	
PERSONAL DATA	13

1- INTERNATIONAL STUDENT ACCEPTANCE CALENDAR (*)			
ULUYÖS WEBSITE	https://uludag.edu.tr/uluyos		
Taking Preferences According to the TR- YÖS and Other Valid Exam Results Accepted by Our University Senate	June 10th - June 27th, 2025 (Application deadline 17:00 p.m., By Türkiye Local Time)		
Announcement of Placement Results (Internet Acces of Acceptance Letters) (**)	July 21th, 2025 Monday		
Online Pre-Registration of Admitted Students	July 25th – August 13th, 2025 (Application deadline 17:00 p.m., By Türkiye Local Time)		
Second Placement			
Announcement of the Results of the Second Placement in the Vacant Quotas (Internet Access of Acceptance Letters (**)	August 22nd, 2025 Friday		
Online Pre-Registration of Admitted Students	August 25th - September 5th, 2025 (Application deadline 17:00 p.m., By Türkiye Local Time)		

ATTENTION: Special Talent Exam dates will be announced by the relevant units.

- (*) Bursa Uludag University Commission of International or Foreign Students Selection, Placement and Admission (YDOKK), has the authority to make changes on the specified dates. Changes to be made are announced to the candidates on the University's ULUYÖS website. Announcements made on the ULUYÖS website are considered as notifications to the candidates.
- (**) Candidates who are entitled to final registration during the Student Selection process learn the results of their placement by logging into the placement system on the Bursa Uludağ University website. Candidates take the printout of their acceptance letters from the University ULUYÖS website. (An Acceptance Letter is not sent to the candidates by e-mail.)

SPECIAL TALENT EXAM	
Faculty of Education	A 1: / 1 :1 / 1: 1 : 1 / 2:
Music Teaching	Applicants who wish to enroll in higher education programs
Teacher Training in Arts and Crafts	which require special skills in art, music and physical
State Conservatory	education are selected by means of special aptitude (skills)
Composition and Maestro of an Orchestra	tests. Foreign students who apply to programs that accept
Turkish Music	students with Special Talent Exam are required to take
Piano	ULUYÖS or have a valid exam score from the types of
Wind and Percussion Instruments	exams accepted by our University Senate. (CLICK here for
Stringed Instruments	accepted exam types and scores.)
Faculty Of Sport Sciences	accepted examility pes and scores.)
Coaching Education	
Teacher Training in Physical Education and Sports	
Faculty of Fine Arts	Examination Date and Time: Special Talent exam dates will
Dramatic Writing and Dramaturgy	be announced by the relevant units on their web pages.
Acting	
Drawing	
Gilding-Miniature and Marbling	
<u>L</u>	

2- APPLICATION CONDITIONS

- **A)** On the condition that they are senior students at high schools or graduates, the applications of the applicants who:
- 1) Are foreign nationals, (Provided that those studying in secondary education (high school) institutions in Türkiye have registered before the 2022-2023 academic year [Embassy schools, international private education institutions in the MOBİS system, and foreigners brought to our country within the framework of the project carried out by the Ministry of National Education except nationals])
- 2) Are Turkish citizens from birth and have received permission for withdrawal from citizenship from the Turkish Ministry of Interior and, those who are able to document that they have a Blue Card provided to those via their request, who withdrew from their citizenship, (those studying in secondary education (high school) institutions in Türkiye provided that they have registered before the 2022-2023 academic year) (Article 7 of the Turkish Citizenship Law (5901) states that "A child born to a Turkish mother or a Turkish father within the unity of marriage either in Türkiye or abroad is a Turkish citizen". The applicants are strongly advised to read the Turkish Citizenship Law before submitting their applications).
- 3) Are foreign nationals from birth and later acquired Turkish citizenship / have dual citizenship, (those studying in secondary education (high school) institutions in Türkiye provided that they have registered before the 2022-2023 academic year)
- 4) Students who have Turkish Citizenship and have completed all of their secondary (high school) education abroad other than the Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus, (including those who completed their entire secondary education [high school] in Turkish schools opened by the Ministry of Education in a foreign country other than the Turkish Republic of Northren Cyprus)
- **5)** Have Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus citizenship and reside in Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus and those who have completed their secondary education in the Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus and have GCE AL exam results and have enrolled in colleges and high schools in other countries between 2005 and 2010 having or will have GCE AL exam results or have T.R.R.N citizenship who completed all of their secondary (highschool) education in foreign country and have TR-YÖS exam result **will be accepted**.
 - **B**) The applications of the applicants who;
- 1) Are Turkish citizens and have completed all of their high school education in Türkiye and Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus (T.R.N.C.),
- 2) Are T.R.N.C. citizens, (except for those who have completed their whole secondary education in T.R.N.C. having GCE AL results and enrolled in colleges and high schools in other countries between 2005 and 2010 and having or will have GCE AL exam results or have T.R.N.C. citizenship who completed all of their secondary (highschool) education in foreign country and have TR-YÖS exam result.
- 3) Are dual citizens, first of them being Turkish by birth as defined in paragraph 2 of article A, (except for those who meet the conditions in paragraph 4 of Article A)
- **4)** Are dual citizens, one of them being T.R.N.C., (except those who have completed their whole secondary (high school) education in the high schools of T.R.N.C and have GCE AL results and enrolled in colleges and high schools in other countries between 2005 and 2010 having or will have GCE AL exam results or have T.R.N.C. citizenship who completed all of their secondary (highschool) education in foreign country and have TR-YÖS exam result.)
- 5) Have Turkish citizenship or dual citizenship, the first of which is Turkish given by birth as defined in Clause 2 of Article A, who study at schools that are affiliated with the embassies of Türkiye and foreign high schools in Türkiye,
- 6) T.R.N.C. citizens and Turkish Republic citizens that renounced their citizenship/Blue Card holders and foreign nationals who will enroll in secondary education institutions in Türkiye starting from the 2022-2023 academic year (except for foreign nationals brought to our country within the framework of the project carried out by the Ministry of Education and embassy schools and international private education institutions in the MOBİS system.) will not be accepted.

Since it is essential to be educated in the relevant country during high school education, those who have graduated from the Open Education High School abroad program affiliated with the Ministry of National Education by documenting that they have been in the relevant country for the years corresponding to the high school education will also be able to apply for student admission quotas from abroad.

Any candidate applying to Bursa Uludağ University is deemed to agree to all of the conditions specified in this manual and the <u>Instruction Of Bursa Uludağ University Student For Abroad Or Foreign Student Application And Admission Procedure.</u> Click here for the Directive.

3- GUIDELINES, FUNDAMENTAL PRINCIPLES AND RULES

- **3.1.** Candidates' own declarations regarding whether they meet the application requirements will be taken into account when applying for the quotas. Applications of candidates who are found to have made incomplete or incorrect statements will not be evaluated. Candidates not meeting the application requirements, and candidates making applications and submitting preferences with misstatements will not be granted any rights even if they are placed in a program.
- 3.2. During the application, information must be entered into the system without errors, documents must be uploaded legibly and completely, and no changes can be made to the information and preferences. (Each applicant may only apply once. There can be no changes after the preferences are made.)
- **3.3.** During final registration, the authentic and approved copy of the documents must be provided. The applicants who are not able to provide said documents are academically dismissed.
- **3.4.** During the application, placement and registration process; transactions of candidates are canceled and their records are deleted at each determined stage in case of falsified, false, incomplete and incorrect document or information entry / declaration even if their final enrollment has been made. Additional / tuition fees they have paid are not refunded. (BUÜ reserves the right to take legal and administrative action in this case.)
- **3.5.** Applications will be made online on the ULUYÖS website and any application submitted in person or via e-mail will not be accepted.
 - **3.6.** The conditions of Higher Education Council accepting students from abroad,
- A- General Conditions 2.c) item; "The continuation of the practice of applying for foreign student admission quotas within the framework of the criteria determined by the universities in accordance with Article 45/f of the Higher Education Law No. 2547, amended by Law No. 6287, and the Principles Regarding the Admission of Students from Abroad, determined by the Higher Education Council, it is possible to apply for the quota for student admission from abroad; candidates who have obtained a permit and who certify that they have the Certificate on the Exercise of the Granted Rights (blue card), given to their underage children registered on the certificate of renunciation of Turkish citizenship, continued their secondary education abroad before 01/02/2013 and spent the last three years of their secondary education (high school) in a foreign country excluding the TRNC, Türkiye nationals who have completed their high school education or who have completed their high school education in high schools abroad (except T.R.N.C. high schools), Türkiye nationals, and one of their nationalities is Turkish, and also;
- i) The continuation of determining student quota for the departments of **Teaching**, **Law**, **Medicine** and **Dentistry**, which accept foreign students and are recommended by the Higher Education Board,
- ii) However, according to the procedure and principles, the quota for these candidates in the mentioned fields should not exceed 10%. Candidates possessing the specified qualifications should take this into account when making their preferences.
- **3.7.** The preference applications are made based on the examination types and scores accepted by the Bursa Uludağ University Senate. (Accepted examination types and scores are announced on the ULUYÖS web page.) In case the conditions for conducting the aforementioned examinations and the distribution of scores are deemed insufficient, the University reserves the right to reject/apply coefficient to the scores.

4-. PREFERENCE APPLICATIONS AND EVALUATION OF APPLICATIONS

- **4.1.** Preference applications are made via the ULUYÖS Preference Application System based on the examination type scores accepted by the BUÜ Senate. <u>Click Here</u> to access the list of examination types and scores accepted by the Bursa Uludağ University Senate. (ANNEX-1)
- **4.2.** Preference applications will be accepted online via the Bursa Uludağ University ULUYÖS web page (https://www.uludag.edu.tr/en/uluyos) between June 10th and June 27th, 2025. Students will be provided with the opportunity to make 5 (five) preferences, and placement procedures will be conducted starting from the first preference.
- **4.3.** At all stages of placement, priority may be given to foreign students coming from countries whose special circumstances are evaluated.
- **4.4.** Priority may be given to foreign students coming from different countries for the sake of country diversity.
- **4.5.** The equivalence and the suitability of the condition of the exam, type and scores to be used in the admission of international students are evaluated by YDOKK. Candidates' exam scores or secondary school (high school) grade point averages are converted to a 100-point system, with 100 (one hundred) points considered the full mark.
- **4.6.** According to the principles stated in the Higher Education Board's Regulations on Admission of Students from Abroad; candidates who, in accordance with the Turkish Citizenship Law, lose their Turkish citizenship by obtaining permission to renounce Turkish citizenship from the Ministry of Interior, candidates who prove that they hold a blue card given to those who have lost Turkish citizenship upon their request, and candidates who have received their high school education abroad (excluding the Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus) and are dual citizens with one of the nationalities being Turkish, are eligible for registration in the Dentistry, Law, Teaching, and Medicine programs without exceeding 10% of the quota for these programs. In case of identical placement scores, the placement is made giving priority to the higher high school graqduation score and the youngest candidate. Evaluation and placement in quotas are carried out in the following way: based on the highest score, order of preference, and ensuring that candidates from the same country accepted to a department/program for placement do not exceed 20% of the total quota.
- **4.7.** The second placement is conducted among candidates who have not been placed in any department/program from the existing applications; no new preference applications are accepted from candidates.
- **4.8.** If a decision is made to conduct a third placement for the unfilled or vacant quotas, candidates will be notified separately via the ULUYÖS web page, and new applications will be accepted.
- **4.9.** Placements to the departments / programs that are admitted by special talent exams are carried out by the commisions established by the related units.
- **4.10.** During the student selection process, candidates who have earned the right to definitive enrollment will learn about the placement results by logging into the placement result inquiry screen on the Bursa Uludağ University ULUYÖS web page. Candidates may obtain printouts of their acceptance letters from our university's ULUYÖS web page. (Acceptance letters are not sent to candidates via email.)

5- REGISTRATION PROCEDURES

Registration will be carried out in two stages, with online pre-registration followed by definitive registration upon the personal delivery of the required documents. Online pre-registration applications will be made through the ULUYÖS website. Candidates who fail to upload or cannot upload the required documents for online pre-registration during the registration dates, or those who upload incomplete documents, will not be pre-registered. These candidates will be considered to have forfeited their registration rights.

Candidates who have completed their online pre-registration are required to submit the originals of the documents requested for definitive registration, along with the documents they uploaded to the system, to the student affairs of the units they are entitled to register by the announced date, either in person or through a power of attorney given to a lawyer. (If the candidate is under the age of 18, document submission may be made by their parent/legal guardian.)

Candidates who fail to upload the original documents required for pre-registration to the system by the date specified in the 'Placement Results and Registration Procedures Announcement' to be made on the ULUYÖS website will be considered to have forfeited their registration rights. The documents required for registration are listed in Annex-2 of the Guide.

Applicants' own statements regarding whether they meet the application conditions will be taken into account. Applicants who do not meet the application requirements or who make incorrect statements during the application and preference process, even if they have been placed/enrolled, will not be entitled to any rights as a result of this situation.

Individuals who do not have a legal right of residence in Türkiye cannot be enrolled in university. The status of whether candidates have a legal right of residence in Türkiye (visa/residence permit) is evaluated within the scope of legislation determined by relevant Ministries and the Presidency of Migration Management. If it is determined that candidates do not have a legal right of residence in Türkiye, their registrations will be cancelled, and no refunds will be provided to these candidates.

The responsibility for preparing all required documents for registration and visa/residence permit procedures lies solely with the candidate. The University is not obliged to provide any assistance regarding these processes. Candidates are required to complete the procedures for obtaining a residence permit (visa/residence permit) within the time frames determined by the competent authorities. It is the responsibility of candidates to monitor the residence permit processes. Payments made by candidates for registration will not be refunded if they fail to submit the necessary documents within the specified timeframes, resulting from the inability to obtain a residence permit.

After registration, the relationship between the university and students who are found to not meet the application conditions, who have applied with misleading information or documents, or who have errors in their information and documents will be terminated. In this case, contribution fees and tuition fees will not be refunded for students who have made online pre-registration payments but have not enrolled, or who have enrolled and voluntarily deleted their registration.

The contribution and tuition fees to be collected from foreign students are determined by the university board of management, provided that they remain within the minimum and maximum limits in accordance with the relevant legislation provisions of the "Decision on the Determination of the Current Service Costs and Tuition Fees" published annually in the Official Gazette of the Republic of Türkiye.

The amount of tuition fees/contribution fees that candidates admitted to the international student admission quotas for the 2025-2026 Academic Year must pay during online pre-registration for the 1st semester (Fall Semester) is as follows:

If the Decision Regarding the Determination of Contribution Fees and Tuition Fees to be Taken as Student Contributions for Current Service Costs in Higher Education Institutions for the 2025-2026 Academic Year is published during or after the online pre-registration dates, the contribution fees/tuition fees for the Fall Semester specified in the table announced according to the Decision published in the Official Gazette for the previous year will be charged.

For the 1st semester (Fall Semester) contribution fees/tuition fees for the 2025-2026 academic year, any positive or negative difference in the contribution fees/tuition fees determined by the Board of Directors of our University among the contribution fees/tuition fees for the 2025-2026 academic year, which will be in effect upon publication in the Official Gazette according to the Presidential Decision "Decision on Determining the Contribution Fees and Tuition Fees to be Taken as Student Contributions for Current Service Costs in Higher Education Institutions for the 2025-2026 Academic Year", will be collected along with the following Spring semester contribution fees/tuition fees. (Any positive or negative differences due to changes made by the competent authorities in the Decision to be announced, or due to the contribution fees/tuition fees determined by the Board of Directors, will be collected along with the following Spring semester contribution fees/tuition fees/tuition fees.) The amounts of Contribution Fees/Tuition Fees are announced to candidates on the ULUYÖS website.

Candidates must also declare, by signing the Financial Status Declaration Form during online preregistration, that they have sufficient financial means to continue their higher education in our country and to support themselves financially.

According to the legislation and decisions that will come into effect after the publication date of the Guide, Bursa Uludağ University has the authority to make changes. All applicants and enrolled candidates are deemed to have accepted the obligation to comply with these regulations.

6- FINAL PROVISIONS

Communication between the Bursa Uludağ University Overseas or Foreign Student Selection, Placement, and Admission Commission (YDOKK) and candidates is conducted electronically in Turkish and English languages via the email address yos@uludag.edu.tr. The email address provided by the candidates during the preference application process must be current and accurate. Each candidate should use only one email address. Correspondence/transactions should not be conducted on behalf of other candidates using this email. After the candidate number is assigned, it is mandatory to specify the "Candidate Number" in all correspondence with Bursa Uludağ University. Petitions/applications without a Candidate Number will not be processed. Correspondence and notifications with candidates are considered official notifications. Candidates are required to regularly check their email addresses throughout the entire calendar process. The University is not responsible for any disruptions during communication.

Bursa Uludağ University is free to fill or not fill the announced quotas. Meeting the required conditions for application does not guarantee acceptance.

For residence permit procedures, candidates are required to make an online residence permit application through the Presidency of Migration Management website and submit the required documents in person or through a power of attorney given to a lawyer to the **Directorate of Student Affairs International Student Unit**. Residence Permit Documents and Information are available on the ULUYÖS website.

International students who have entered or will enter our country are required to obtain the General Health Insurance (GHI) from the Social Security Institution (SGK) during university registration. Students covered by GHI should pay the necessary premiums to the SGK Presidency and add the GHI Certificate to the school registration and residence application file. Detailed information regarding the implementation will be announced on the ULUYÖS website.

According to the decision taken by the Executive Board of the Council of Higher Education (YÖK) on 13.03.2024 with the decision number 15951:

- a) In accordance with the decision that international students can change the university they are registered in only once within the same academic year, candidates who will apply for preference or have already applied should consider this and make their preference application accordingly. The university reserves the right to evaluate the preference applications of candidates in this situation and delete their registrations. If the registrations of candidates in this situation are deleted, the contribution fee/tuition fee paid will not be refunded.
- **b)** International students whose enrollment is not renewed for two consecutive years or who fail to pay the tuition fees may have their registration terminated by the decision of the relevant department's board of directors. If the registrations of candidates in this situation are deleted, the contribution fee/tuition fee paid will not be refunded.

The duration of the Preparatory Class (Turkish or Foreign Language) is 2 years, and the registrations of candidates who fail to complete it within this period will be deleted. If the registrations of candidates in this situation are deleted, the contribution fee/tuition fee paid will not be refunded.

Bursa Uludağ University has the authority to make changes to all announced dates and conditions related to preference applications, registration procedures, contribution fee/tuition fee amounts, etc. All notifications regarding the procedures to be carried out, newly taken decisions, information about necessary changes, and principles regarding implementation will be announced to the candidates through our university's official communication channel, the ULUYÖS website. Any information or sharing made outside of this official channel should not be relied upon. All changes and announcements made on the ULUYÖS website are considered official notifications to the candidates.

The university's official email address is **yos@uludag.edu.tr** Candidates are required to monitor their email addresses and announcements made on the ULUYÖS website. Additionally, candidates will not be notified via postal mail. Candidates are responsible for any loss of rights that may occur due to failure to follow announcements.

Applying for foreign student admission quotas implies the acceptance of all the provisions outlined in this **Guide** and **Directive** on Bursa Uludağ University's Admission of International Students available on the ULUYÖS website.

The information, explanations, and rules stated in this Guide may be subject to change in accordance with decisions made by the Bursa Uludağ University Senate/Board of Directors and/or the Council of Higher Education (YÖK) and other official institutions after the publication date of this Guide. In such cases, the procedures to be followed will be determined by the YDOKK. In cases not specified in the Directive and Guide, decisions will be made by the YDOKK based on the directives given by the ULUYÖS Coordinator.

ANNEXES:

ANNEX-1 Examinations And Conditions For Foreign Student Acceptances

ANNEX-2 The Required Documents from Candidates Who Have Earned the Right to Definitive Registration for Foreign Student Admission Quotas

ANNEX-3 Letter of Commitment

ANNEX-4 Financial Status Declaration

ANNEX-5 BUÜ Clarification Text Regarding Protection and Processing of Personal Data

ANNEX-1 EXAMINATIONS AND CONDITIONS FOR FOREIGN STUDENT ACCEPTANCES FOR 2025-2026 ACADEMIC YEAR (*,**)

A CITY (A COLUMN TO 1)	Minimum 22 points in Scientific Reasoning,
ACT (American College Test)	Mathematics and Composite points
Azerbaijan Central University Entrance Examination (DİM)	Minimum 500/700
Belarussian Central Testing	Minimum 350/600
China's National Higher Education Entrance Examination (Gaokao)	Minimum 480/750
Indonesia Ujian Sekolah Test (US)	Minimum 60% success
French Baccalaureate (Diplomas have an Equivalence with French Baccalaureate)	Minimum 12/20
GCE (A Level) Test	Level A in minimum 3 subjects one of which must be related to the field applied.
South Korea College Scholastic Aptitude Test (CSAT)	Minimum 500/800 CSAT
IB International Baccalaureate	Minimum 30/45
Iran (Average of Debirestan and Pişdaneşgahi Diplomas)	Minimum 16/20
Kazakhstan National University Entrance Test (ENT)	Minimum 80/120
Kyrgyzstan National University Entrance Test (ORT)	Minimum 200/250
Kosova National University Entrance Test	Minimum 80% success
Mongolian Central University Entrance Examination	Minimum 80% success
Russian Federation Unified State Exam (EGE)	Minimum 80% success
SAT I	Minimum 1100 cumulative and 600 mathematics points
Tawjihi Exam	Minimum 80% success
International Science Olympics recognized and participated by TÜBİTAK	Gold (100), silver (90), bronze (80) medals
Ukraine University Entrance Exam	150 out of 200 in at least 3 subjects
West African Examination Council— (International) Senior School Certificate Examination (WAEC – SSCE)	To be successful in six subjects with at least Credit C6 grades.
Greek University Entrance Exam	Minimum 12/20

PLEASE NOTE:

(*) University Entrance Exams are valid for 2 years from the date of entrance to the exam.

ANNEX-2 REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FROM CANDIDATES ENTITLED TO DEFINITIVE REGISTRATION FOR FOREIGN STUDENT ADMISSION QUOTAS

- 1) A photocopy of the high school diploma or temporary graduation certificate
- (The original will be seen and copied. If in a language other than Turkish or English, a photocopy of the Turkish translation certified by a notary public or Turkish foreign representative offices is required.)
- 2) An official note card certified by the high school administration showing the courses taken, grades, and overall grade point average of the candidate in high school (The original will be seen and copied.) (Transcript)
- For diplomas and grade averages obtained from the Ministry of National Education of the Republic of Türkiye, excluding those written on the high school diploma,
- If in a language other than Turkish or English, a photocopy of the Turkish translation certified by a notary public or Turkish foreign representative offices is required.
- 3) Original Diploma Equivalency Certificate and a Photocopy Of High School Diploma, (The original will be seen and copied.)
- Photocopy of the high school diploma and the Equivalency Certificate obtained from the Provincial Directorate of National Education or Turkish Foreign Representations [If the Equivalency Certificate cannot be submitted until the start of the academic year, the relevant faculty/vocational school may grant an extension until the begining of the 2026-2027 academic year. (Candidates are required to submit diplomas with "Apostille" approval for equivalence procedures by the Ministry of National Education. Candidates without an Equivalency Certificate must bring their diplomas approved with Apostille certification when coming from abroad. For Equivalency Procedures, Click Here.)]
- 4) Copy of passport pages showing both entries to the country and exit from the country covering the high school education periods (for those who are Turkish citizens and have completed their high school education abroad), or **Import** / **Export from the country Document** obtained via the E-government system (for those under the age of 18)

[Considering that dual citizens with one nationality being Turkish, as well as those with Turkish nationality, who have completed their entire high school education in foreign schools (excluding schools in the T.R.N.C.), can apply for admission quotas from abroad; applications for transition to higher education within the framework of foreign student admission quotas with diplomas obtained through distance education **from a foreign high school without being physically present** abroad **are not accepted**. For those who have obtained a diploma through formal education from a foreign high school, entries to the country and exit from the country where the diploma was obtained will be checked through passport or security records. If the duration of stay in the relevant country does not support that the high school education was obtained through formal education, applications with these diplomas within the framework of foreign student admission quotas will not be considered, and if it's detected, their registrations will be canceled at any stage.]

- 5) Exam Result Document (For applicants whose exam result document does not have a verification code or whose exam results cannot be accessed from the system, the exam result documents must be sealed/signed or notarized.)
- **6)** Copy of Passport/ID (For those who have a Turkish ID Card, copy of Turkish ID Card; for those who have a Residence Permit Card, copy of Residence Permit Card; for those who have a Blue Card, copy of Blue Card; for foreigners without these documents, copy of the first page, entry page, and visa page of the passport) (Original Document will be seen and copied.)
- 7) Copy of Residence Permit Card. (Click Here for the Residence Permit Application Procedures.)

(For those without a residence permit, they must submit the foreign identity number on the residence permit card they will obtain later to the relevant student affairs unit by the beginning of the academic year.)

- 8) "Certificate of Identity Register Copy" showing information about the foreign citizenship before acquiring Turkish citizenship, for those whose nationality includes Turkish citizenship (via e-Government Gateway).
- 9) Bank Receipt, indicating that the semester tuition fee/education fee has been deposited into the relevant bank. (For candidates who have earned the right to register, payments should be made to the Bursa Uludağ University Account at Halk Bank branches, indicating candidate number, name and surname in the explanation section instead of the student number, as specified in the acceptance letter. For graduates from high schools designated by the Presidency for Turks Abroad and Related Communities (YTB) whose tuition fees will be covered by the YTB, no receipt is required. (These candidates will upload their high school diplomas instead of a receipt during online pre-registration.)

-For students exempted for learning Turkish through relevant programs, they will be responsible for paying the tuition fees for the programs at the faculties/vocational schools. **Click here** for the tuition fee amounts.

- 10) 2 headshot photos,
- 11) Financial status document and declaration indicating that the student's financial means enable them to pursue higher education in Türkiye. (Annex-4) Click here for the Financial Status Document and Declaration.
- 12) Letter of Acceptance
- 13) Photocopy of the Turkish Language Proficiency Certificate, (Those who do not bring any document regarding their Turkish language proficiency during the definitive registration will be considered to have A1 level of Turkish proficiency and their procedures will be carried out accordingly.)
- -Turkish Language Proficiency Certificate is not required from students who have completed their entire high school education at a Turkish high school abroad (affiliated with the Turkish Ministry of National Education) or at a high school in Türkiye. [The duration of the Preparatory Class (Turkish or Foreign Language) is 2 years, and the registrations of candidates who fail to complete this period will be deleted.]
- **14-) General Health Insurance (GSS) Certificate** (International students who have entered or will enter Türkiye will be required to obtain General Health Insurance (GSS) from the Social Security Institution Presidency.)
- 15) Original copy of the Letter of Commitment (Annex-3) Click here for the Letter of Commitment
- **16) Health Report and Criminal Record** (Airline Transportation Management Department) from candidates admitted to the Civil Aviation Management Department ("See, Quota table Special Terms and Conditions")
- * The documents required for registration and the conditions are subject to change by Bursa Uludağ University. Any changes will be announced to the candidates through the ULUYÖS website.

ANNEX-3 LETTER OF COMMITMENT

I have read, understood and accept the application requirements, the ULUYOS Guide and Bursa Uludağ University's Instructions Regarding Acceptance of Foreign Students. I accept and declare that I meet the application requirements, that the documents I have uploaded and information I have entered into the system are authentic, and that otherwise, all legal responsibility being my own, I consent to the cancellation of my registration even if it has already been made.

I accept and undertake that I will deliver the document/documents are among the documents required from the applicants who are entitled to enroll in Foreign Student Quotas until **the start of 2025-2026 Academic Year**. I therefore request that I get enrolled conditionally and given some time.

I agree that my enrollment/ the enrollment of I stand proxy for can be annulled provided that I do not submit the documents on given time.

I hereby submit for	your information / 2025
	NAME/SURNAME: T.C. Identity Card or Residence Permit Card or Pass. Number: Signature:

^{*} Bursa Uludağ Üniversitesi reserves the right to make changes to the required documents and conditions for registration. Any changes will be announced to candidates through the ULUYÖS website.

ANNEX-4 FINANCIAL STATUS DECLARATION

0 11	t Admission from Abroad Quotas at your university, I have gained the
-	Department/Program.
<u> •</u>	dent is personally responsible for following up the registration renewal ts, paying the contribution/tuition fee, re-registration, and course selection

I know and accept that it is stated that the students who are placed in the student admission quota from abroad must pay the contribution/tuition fee and that the said fees are determined and updated by the University Administrative Board and that the amounts to be determined change every year in accordance with the "Decision on the Determination of the Contribution to the Current Service Costs in Higher Education Institutions and the Tuition Fees" that published every year in the Official Gazette.

The Fall Semester Contribution in the Contribution/Tuition Fees table is determined by the Board of Directors according to the Decision published in the Official Gazette for the previous year, if the Decision on the Determination of the Tuition Fees and Contributions to be Taken as Student Contribution to the Current Service Costs in Higher Education Institutions is published on the registration dates or after the registration. I accept that the positive or negative differences due to the changes to be made by the competent authorities in the decision to be announced or the contribution/tuition fees to be determined by the Board of Directors will be taken together with the contribution/tuition fee in the following Spring Semester.

I know and accept that students are required to complete course selection procedures after depositing the contribution/tuition fee, in cases where it is compulsory according to the legislation, within the periods specified in the academic calendar accepted by the University Senate.

I declare and undertake that I have the financial means to continue my education in Türkiye.

I hereby submit for your information.

procedures.

Note: Candidates are required to attach one of the following documents to their Financial Status Document and Statement in order to prove that they have financial means. 1- Bank Statement of the last 1 month showing that the candidate or his/her guardian has money equal to the one-year contribution/tuition fee determined for the Faculty/Vocational School for which he/she has the right to enroll in a bank account.

2- Photocopy of the license/deed of the candidate's guardian regarding the movable/real estate

The applicant candidate	
Your Passport/T.C/Y.U Identity Card number:	
Candidate's Name / Surname:	
Candidate's Address:	
	//2025
	Signature

Note: In order to prove their financial capability, candidates are required to submit one of the following documents as an attachment to the Financial Status Declaration:

- 1- A bank statement from the last month showing that the candidate or their parent has an amount of money equal to the contribution fee/tuition fee determined for one semester for the Faculty/Vocational School for which the registration right is gained, deposited in a bank account.
- **2-** A photocopy of the deed/title deed related to movable/immovable property belonging to the candidate or their parent.

It is sufficient for the candidate to fill one in Turkish or English.

ANNEX-5 BUÜ CLARIFICATION TEXT REGARDING PROTECTION AND PROCESSING OF PERSONAL DATA

Bursa Uludağ Üniversitesi (BUÜ) takes the highest level of security measures possible to ensure the lawful collection, storage, and sharing of your personal data and to protect your privacy. Our aim is to transparently inform you about the ways and legal reasons for the collection of your personal data, processing purposes, and your rights, in accordance with Article 10 of the Law on Protection of Personal Data No. 6698 (Law No. 6698).

a) Data Supervisor

In accordance with the provisions of the Law on the Protection of Personal Data No.6698 ("KVKK"), as the Bursa Uludağ University (BUÜ) ULUYÖS Coordinator, entitled as Data Supervisor, we inform you about our mutual rights and obligations within the scope of the mentioned legal regulation. Your personal information can be recorded, stored, updated, disclosed to third parties when permitted by the legislation, transferred, classified and processed in the ways listed in the KVKK.

b) Purposes of Processing Personal Data

Data about International Students' entrance-exit dates, residence, exam application preferences, transactions student relationship, the scope of the fulfillment of the performance and discipleship process, identity / passport, address, T.C./Y.U. numbers, other necessary information including the Identification Number and personal data; all records and documents that processed in electronic (internet / mobile etc.) or paper environment will be stored by authorized institutions and other authorities within the scope of the legislation. The purpose of the legislation is to comply with the information storage, reporting and information obligations stipulated by the authorized institutions and other authorities, to increase the quality of service with marketing and statistical activities, to provide requested / other products / services. Special quality personal data are processed within the contractual relationship due to communication, information and similar processes.

c) The Parties and Purposes for Which Processed Personal Data Can be Transferred

Persons or organizations to which personal data can be transferred for the purposes stated above are persons, public institutions and organizations and private public institutions and organizations permitted by the provisions of legal legislation. Special quality personal data, on the other hand, can be transferred to domestic and foreign institutions and organizations in order to carry out activities that are secured by confidentiality agreements and subject to the purposes specified in the legislation to which we are subject. Personal and private personal data are stored in a secure environment that is not open to the general use and is not shared with third parties unless there is an unauthorized or legal obligation.

c) The Method and Legal Basis of Personal Data Collection

The method of collecting personal data can be collected verbally, in writing or electronically through all digital channels such as questions sent to our website, messages, telephone calls, etc.

d) The Rights of the Data Owner as Stipulated in Article 11 of Law No. 6698

According to Article 11 of the Law No. 6698 on all collected information you have the right to;

- Learning whether personal data is processed or not,
- Requesting information if personal data has been processed,
- Learning the purpose of processing personal data and whether they are used for their intended purpose,
- Knowing the third parties to whom personal data is transferred domestically or abroad,
- Requesting correction of personal data if they are incomplete or incorrectly processed,
- Requesting the deletion or destruction of personal data within the framework of the conditions stipulated in Article 7 of Law No. 6698.
- Requesting that the transactions carried out in accordance with paragraphs (d) and (e) be notified to third parties to whom personal data is transferred,
- Objecting to the emergence of a result that is unfavorable to the person by analyzing the processed data exclusively through automatic systems,
- In case of damage due to illegal processing of personal data, you have the right to request compensation for the damage. To exercise your aforementioned rights, you can personally apply to Bursa Uludağ University at the address "BUÜ Görükle

Campus 16059 Nilüfer/BURSA" with a written and signed petition containing the necessary information to identify you and explanations regarding your requested rights, or you can use other application methods as specified in the "Regulation on Application Procedures and Principles to the Data Controller," published in the Official Gazette dated March 10, 2018, and numbered 30356.